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We at Guthrie House acknowledge the Gadigal people, the Traditional Owners of the Eora nation, the land on which 
we meet today, and recognise their continuing connection to land, waters and culture. We pay our respects to their 
Elder past, present and emerging.

How you can help

• Make a donation
• Leave a bequest
• Support an event or fundraising activity

When thinking of a charity for “Dry July”, “R U OK Day”, “City to Surf” or any 
work or individual fundraising event, please nominate Guthrie House as your 
chosen charity.

• Become a corporate partner
Call us if your business has been looking for a charity to partner with or because 
you want to make a difference supporting women to change their lives.

http://www.guthriehouse.com/contact

Call and speak to our Manager: 02 9564 5977.
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Guthrie House Co-Operative Limited is a not-for-
profit transitional accommodation service for women 
with an involvement in the criminal justice system, 
including women who are pregnant or with infants in 
their full time care after release. It is one of the few 
services that accept women who are participating in 
pharmacotherapy treatment, including methadone 
or buprenorphine.

Guthrie House was founded in 1979 by Sandra Willson 
(1939-1999) and the following excerpt is from an article 
by Les Kennedy from the Sydney Morning Herald on 
18 November 1999, after the passing of Ms Willson. 
It gives clarity to her life’s journey:

‘When Sandra Willson was released from Mulawa 
Women’s Detention Centre on October 14, 1977 she 
emerged with the prison cat and a bag full of clothes. 
Willson, who died at the age of 60, left much personal 
baggage behind her. Her 18 years in prison included 
11 years in the Parramatta Psychiatric Centre; the 
rest was spent as a Governor’s Pleasure inmate at the 
Mulawa Complex. Her period of incarceration gave her 
the title of Australia’s longest serving women prisoner, 
a term marked by controversy. In 1960 aged 21, Willson 
was found not guilty on the grounds of insanity of the 
murder of a taxi driver. By 1970 a psychiatric prison 
medical panel declared her sane and gave rise to the 

Women Behind Bars movement who championed for 
her release. Among her supporters were Virginia Bell, 
Pat O’Shane, Janet Walquist, Wendy Bacon, Anne 
Summers, Meredith Burgmann and Bessie Guthrie. 
Their campaign for Willson’s freedom saw many arrests 
from demonstrations and sit-ins which even included 
the storming of the office of the Minister for Justice.

‘When she emerged from prison, Willson, who has 
converted to Hinduism and studied 23 languages while 
inside, said she was fortunate to have friends outside to 
help her assimilate. “Gaol can do one of two things to 
you. It can either make you sensitive to other people’s 
problems – or it can make you so embittered that all you 
want is revenge against society that has kicked you,” 
she said. Finding that women did not emerge into a 
supportive environment, Willson lobbied government 
welfare organisations for funds to establish the state’s 
first halfway house for female parolees.

‘In 1979 under the banner of the Women’s Emergency 
Shelter and Training Scheme, she established Guthrie 
House, first located on Liberty Street, Enmore; named 
in honour of Bessie Guthrie (1905-1977). Willson took 
a course in counselling directed as drug and alcohol 
abuse, was appointed to the executive of the Network 
of Alcohol and Other Drugs Agencies (NADA) and was 
an advisor to the TV drama “Prisoner” in 1982.

The Guthrie House story
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‘In 1992 Willson retired to Gympie, Queensland, where 
she died at her home from a stroke’.

Guthrie House is one of the only services of its kind 
that exclusively supports women who have a history of 
alcohol and other drug abuse and current involvement 
in the criminal justice system.

To be eligible for admission to the program women 
must have attained the age of 18 years and have current 
involvement in the criminal justice system with a Level 
of Service Inventory – Revised (LSI-R) rating of medium 
to high risk, be homeless or at risk of homelessness.

The Guthrie House Program is comprised of a residential 
component of three months and an aftercare component 
of up to 12 months. The program provides women 
with safe and secure medium-term transitional 
accommodation and the wrap-around sup ports needed 
to address their offending behaviour prevent and reduce 
re-offending, and successfully transition to sustainable 
long-term housing.

The Guthrie House Program is delivered pursuant to a 
case management framework that is client centred and 
promotes the principles of Throughcare. Specifically, 

clients are case managed to address their assessed 
needs, in particular those predicative of re-offending 
and homelessness.

Clients have access to a full range of support services to 
address their needs, including accommodation, 24-hour 
support and supervision; programs focused on relapse 
prevention, life skills and healthy living; specialist 
in-house support services including a Family Worker, 
Mental Health Worker, Health Worker and Aboriginal 
Support Worker; and established partnerships that 
facilitate access to both specialist and mainstream 
support services.

Guthrie House is committed to quality management 
and continuous service improvement to ensure best 
practice principles for reducing re-offending underpin a 
client-centred service delivery approach; and retains the 
values imbedded by Sandra Willson and Bessie Guthrie 
as a safe place for women and babies.

Jail can do one of two things to you. It can either make you 
sensitive to other people’s problems or it can make you so 
embittered that all you want is revenge against a society 
that has kicked you. 
Sandra Willson

Photo of Sandra Willson courtesy of Getty Images
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The past 12 months have been a time of renewal and 
consolidation for Guthrie House, which has occurred 
within the context of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Even with the disruptions that the pandemic has 
brought, we have been able to remain operational and 
have seen a significant number of women complete both 
our residential and outreach programs, many with young 
children. Women who come into our program are often 
in challenging and complex periods of their lives, and we 
all commend and admire the resilience, determination 
and willingness shown by those in the program. We hope 
that each of the women had an experience in Guthrie 
of receiving compassionate and empowering support to 
enable them to live fulfilled lives within our community.

Over the past 12 months we’ve been able to deliver 
on the goals of our strategic plan and have increased 
our evidence-based service offerings to include more 
specialised alcohol and other drug programs, including 
tobacco cessation, and have expanded our offerings 
for children and families. We’re improving our service 
offerings by having a dedicated Aboriginal Support 
Worker, as well as ensuring Aboriginal representation 
at the Board level. The Blue Knot Foundation have been 
engaged to provide supervision for our staff and to 
improve our Trauma Informed Practice.

During part of 2019-2020 we had Jo Naylor acting as 
Manager for Christine Duggan, who was on maternity 
leave. This transition was relatively smooth, and Jo was 
able to provide strong leadership and continue to oversee 
the excellent work of the staff at Guthrie. Jo then stayed 
on in a project capacity for a further six months to 
undertake some specific work regarding improving some 
human resources functions and to leading a significant 
IT upgrade. The board would like to thank Jo for her 
contributions to Guthrie House throughout her time 
with us.

Of course, the amazing and tireless work of our Service 
Manager, Christine Duggan must be commended. 2020 
has seen us need to manage the emerging and serious 
implications of the COVID-19 pandemic, and Christine 
was able to deliver a business continuity plan that 
ensured that all of the women and children, as well as 
all of our staff, have remained well and safe. Despite the 
challenges that 2020 has brought, Christine has been able 
to lead Guthrie House by prioritising strong relationships 
with our funding bodies and partner organisations to 
ensure that the women had all the resources they needed, 
even during periods of isolation. The board would like to 
thank Christine for her leadership and commitment to 
the service through a very challenging period.

Message from 
the Chairperson
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The staff of Guthrie House have shown tremendous 
diligence and passion over the past year, and this 
was really demonstrated during the COVID-19 
pandemic restrictions. Services have continued 
almost uninterrupted in whatever form possible; case 
management support and groups continued, as did 
outreach and intake. This has been greatly appreciated 
by the board, and we thank each of the women who 
work at Guthrie for their efforts and commitment to the 
women and children. Without them, Guthrie would not 
be the service it is.

During 2019-2020 the Board of Guthrie House has also 
had some changes. Eleni North and Susan McKendry, 
who had both served as Director’s and Chairs of the 
Board, and Brenda Bartlett who served as a long-standing 
Director, have now rotated off. We are deeply appreciative 
of the service of these women over preceding years. We 
have welcomed Alexandra Shehadie, Eve McGregor, 
Desiree Leha and Becky Wood to the Board, all of whom 
come with a wealth of experience and passion to offer.

Of course, none of our work would be possible without 
the support of our funding bodies; Corrective Services 
NSW, the Department of Communities and Justice, 
Sydney Local Health District and the Department of 
Health - Community Hub. Your support has impacted the 
lives of many. We also would like to thank the Network 
of Alcohol and Other Drug Agencies and all of the other 
specialist women’s services who work alongside us to 
support women and children.

In the year ahead the Board is excited to turn our focus 
to a new cycle of strategic planning with the intention 
of further improving our service offerings and delivery 
to vulnerable women, and their children, who’ve been 
involved in the criminal justice system.

Kathryn Key
Chairperson

The staff of Guthrie House have shown 
tremendous diligence and passion over the past 
year, and this was really demonstrated during the 
COVID-19 pandemic restrictions.
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How to you even begin to reflect on the last year? 
There are two very distinct times, before COVID-19 
and during COVID-19. I want to ensure a balanced 
account of Guthrie House for all funders, members and 
community supporters but how do you do that after 
experiencing such unprecedented times. COVID-19 
has had an impact on our country, community, clients, 
and staff. It has forced us to evaluate how we provide 
support to our women as well as our own morals, values 
and personal safety compared to our dedication and 
commitment to our work.

I am proud to say that during this time Guthrie House 
did not close its doors. We continued to strive to provide 
the best service that we could all the while making 
changes to reduce risk and follow recommendations from 
NSW Health and the Federal Government.

This time was one of opportunity for us. We were able 
to explore the virtual world and adapt our clinical 
program so that we were utilising telehealth and 
online conferencing to deliver services to our Outreach 
clients and receive services for our Residential Clients. 
Guthrie House was given a deep clean and a face lift 
and is looking comfortable and homely and we officially 
became a smoke free environment with a no smoking 
rule coming into play.

We supported 30 women in residence this year with 
two accompanying children and 11 women in our 
Outreach Program. Of these women in residence, five 
were supported through their pregnancy during their 
engagement with Guthrie House. Due to COVID we 
were limited to the amount of women and children that 
we supported in the second half of the year as we had 
to make the unfortunate decision in the early days of 
COVID to not take in women from this cohort until 
we had developed a way to meet their needs during the 
pandemic. To ensure that we were still able to provide 
a service we developed a remote Child and Family 
Program that involved virtual support. Three women 
were involved in this program and it has now been 
established as part of the suite of programs that Guthrie 
House will offer into the future.

Our Health program has had a strong focus on diagnosis 
and treatment for Hepatitis C working closely with RPA 
and Hepatitis NSW as well as a focus on mental health 
support, with 90% of our clients experiencing past 
trauma and 63% of clients having a diagnosed mental 
health concern. We made 22 referrals to mental health 
support in the community for clients who did not have 
current support. We continue to work with women who 
are on Opioid Treatment Programs making up 50% of 

Message from 
the Manager
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our client group this year and 73% of our women have 
successfully abstained or managed lapse’s while in 
the program.

We had a high number of Aboriginal Clients access 
our service this year with 53% of our clients being 
Aboriginal Women from all over NSW. We have 
reviewed our cultural inclusion policy and processes 
for cultural support introducing the development of 
a cultural case plan that sits alongside of the client 
case plan. Thank-you to Susan Kelly for assisting 
in the development of this document. We have also 
commenced the exciting journey of developing a 
Reconciliation Action Plan for endorsement through 
Reconciliation Australia.

Homeless women continue to be a priority for support 
at Guthrie House this year. 57% of our women were 
experiencing primary homelessness at the time of 
referral to Guthrie House and 100% of these women 
were supported to access secure accommodation post-
graduation. We would like to thank our partnerships 
with Metro Housing and St George Community 
Housing - Port Jackson for providing opportunities 
to five women. I would also like to acknowledge the 
Guthrie House Case Management team and the 
extraordinary effort that they put in to navigate the 
Housing NSW system with our women.

This time has reinforced to me the strong partnerships 
that we have in our community and all the people that 
contribute to Guthrie House to support our women. 
Thank you to all services that provided virtual support 
to our clients. It was very much needed and appreciated. 
To our funders Corrective Services NSW, Ministry of 
Health - SLHD, Department of Health - Community 
Hub and Department of Communities and Justice, 
thank you for your support. Our contact managers 
PACE TEAM (CSNSW), Kerry O’Neill (SLHD), Myrna 
Chaar (DCJ) and Scott Hamilton (Community Hub). You 
have all been such a pillar of support and strength for 
our organisation and to me as the manager. Thank you 
for listening, offering advice and humour and being so 
flexible so that we could continue to provide a service.

Thank you to the Guthrie House staff and board. You 
have done an amazing job at being flexible, creative, and 
going above and beyond to continue to provide a quality 
service to our clients.

Christine Duggan
Manager

This time has reinforced to me the strong 
partnerships that we have in our community and 
all the people that contribute to Guthrie House to 
support our women. 
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- Values -
Compassion

We seek to understand our clients and act without judgement.

Empowerment
We seek to empower our clients so they can independently transition 

back to the community.

Collaboration
We recognise that no one service can solve the complex issues our clients 
experience and therefore seek to work with partners to create a network 

of support around our clients.

Community based
We work within the local community and respect the country and 

traditional owners.

Accountability
We measure our results and review our performance to ensure our 

standards are of the highest quality.

- Vision -
to empower women to build positive futures

- Purpose -
 to provide a holistic residential program for women involved in the 

criminal justice system, nd their accompanying children, to successfully 
transition to the community

What we stand for



Guthrie House completed the 2020 financial year 
in a healthy state. Funding arrangements remained 
largely unchanged during the year, providing a level of 
financial security and stability for future operations. 
The impact of COVID-19 on Guthrie House was offset by 
the Federal Government support received. Income and 
expenses for the year were more favourable than budget 
with a net gain of $16,420 for the year.

The balance sheet shows the financially stable position 
of Guthrie House, able to meet all debts as and when 
they fall due. Total net assets of $634,715 of which 

total cash is $514,538. Cash reserves have decreased 
by $250,050 due to the timing of funding received as 
compared to the prior financial year.

 

Tiffany Slater
Treasurer

Message from 
the Treasurer
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Statistical review
Financial year 18/19 19/20 19/20
Performance measure Number Number %

Women in residence during the year 31 30

Women in Aftercare program 18 11

Aboriginal and/or Torres Strait Islander 20 16 53

Number of weeks in residential 271 209

Successfully completed program 21 16 53

Disengaged/self-discharged against advice 4 11

Discharged due to reoffending or serious breaching 3 2

Left due to drug relapse 4 1

Pregnant on entry 5 5

Number of accompanying children 6 2

Women with children under DCJ Care 14 10

Number of external referrals and services used 135 123

Homeless on entry 15 17 57

Housing outcomes achieved through case management 14 17

Women diagnosed and receiving treatment for Hepatitis C 8 10

Stated or diagnosed with Mental Health issues 18 19 63

Prescribed and currently using medication for MH 14 13

Experienced past trauma (DV, sexual abuse, family abuse) 25 27 90

Accessed MH care plan from GP 2 22

Number of referrals to MH services 42

Criminal Justice orders

• Parole/ICO 17 22
• Bail 6 3
• Suspended Sentence 0 0
• Drug Court 8 5

Main drug causing chronic AOD dependence or disruption to life

• Methamphetamine 7 16
• Heroin 21 13
• Alcohol 2 0
• Cannabis 1 1

Pharmacotherapy 19 15 50

Drug use – successfully abstained or managed lapsed while in the program 22 22 73



The groups are evaluated monthly and adaptable both in 
timing of delivery and at times the content based on the 
needs of our clients.  

Over the last year we offered the following:

• SMART Recovery and Tackling Tobacco Program’s
• Educational Groups and Interventions; Healthy 

Relationships, Hepatitis C screening, treatment and 
education, Nutrition and Exercise, Parenting and 
Financial Literacy.

• Therapeutic Groups; Art Therapy, Drumbeat, 
Meditation, Yoga, Dialectical Behavioural Therapy.

• Cultural Groups; Cultural Art, Family Tree, Events 
for NAIDOC, Reconciliation Week and other 
cultural events.

• Cultural Support for our Aboriginal, CALD and 
LGBTIQ women; inclusive of a Cultural Care Plan 
for our Aboriginal Women.

• Intensive Case Management Support inclusive of:
 - Advocacy and support with government 

departments such as CSNSW and DCJ
 - Referrals to and liaison with a range of health, 

welfare and legal services;
 - Support at court hearings and other important 

appointments.
 - Support to seek accommodation post-graduation 

of program.
• Aftercare Support:

 - 12-month Outreach Program 
 - 3-month Child and Family Program

Therapeutic Support
Guthrie House offers a suite of evidence based psychoeducational 
and living skills groups as well as intensive case management and 
aftercare programs to support our clients on their journey.
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We provide evidence-based programs in-house with our 
staff as trained facilitators; however, we rely heavily on 
our community partnerships to provide other clinical 
programs to our clients. This left us unable to deliver 
half the suite of programs to our clients as well as 
limited counselling options for any new clients. 

March 2020 was spent frantically evaluating our 
program and finding opportunities for growth and 
remote learning. We quickly learned how to use video 
conferencing and telehealth services and were able 
to introduce a range of new programs for our clients 
online. We would like to acknowledge Dress for Success 
and Wesley Mission for their online financial literacy 
program. Ozham Learning for their online Meditation, 
Newtown Neighborhood Centre, and Delphine Bostock 
for providing counselling via telehealth services and 
SMART Recovery Australia for online SMART groups 
for our Outreach clients.

Collaborative case management with other stakeholders 
is critical in the work that we do to ensure one case plan 
and the best outcomes for our clients. There was a meme 

at the beginning of the year that stated, ‘you are not 
working from home, you are at home in a crisis trying to 
work’. Thank you to the Drug Court Team, Community 
Restorative Centre, and Leichhardt Community 
Corrections for doing such as amazing job via phone 
support that we did not know that you were at home in 
a crisis trying to work! The continued support that you 
provided our Guthrie women during this time has been 
consistent and professional.

Virtual Guthrie House
The arrival of COVID-19 and the restrictions that 
followed brought opportunities for evaluation, 
growth and development for Guthrie House.
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Guthrie House provides a twelve-month Outreach 
program. This program involves holistic case management 
with a focus on maintaining stable and secure housing, 
relapse prevention skills, personal development, 
community participation and family reconciliation.

The objective of the program is to support women to 
live independently and break away from patterns that 
lead back to incarceration. Our Outreach program 
achieves this through regular home visits and phone 
contact throughout the year supporting clients to 
achieve self-determined goals, while assisting to achieve 
any mandated goals. A large part of this program is to 
provide referrals and advocacy for our clients to other 
services creating a wrap-around support.

The provision of Outreach to our clients was suddenly 
and severely restricted in March due to the arrival 
of COVID-19. At the time, a service decision was 
made that for the safety of our clients and staff, only 
virtual support could be offered. This was incredibly 
challenging for our women as many of them did 
not have any supports in the community except for 
professional supports, all of which had made the same 
service decision.

Not only were they unable to engage with services as 
planned, they were also required by the government 
to remain at home and limit community contact. It 
was such a difficult time for the community in general 
but to people in early recovery with limited supports it 
was terrifying.

We are so proud of what our Outreach women achieved 
during this time. With phone support from our 
Outreach worker they were able to access online groups 
and telehealth services such as counselling. They had 
challenging moments, but at the end of the year and 
into the next more than half of these clients are still 
engaged in the Guthrie House Outreach Program, 
undertaking training, remaining drug free and are 
maintaining their tenancies. Congratulations to our 
Outreach Women. You have done an outstanding job.

Outreach program
Our 12-month Outreach program allows a continuum 
of care to our residential clients as they continue 
their journeys in the community.
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In February 2020, we employed our new Aboriginal 
Support Worker Mariann Smith. We are so fortunate to 
have such an experienced, humble, and creative person 
join the team. Guthrie House contracted Susan Kelly 
a community member to create a Cultural Care Plan 
for our clients. Mariann has been working with our 
women to develop this document further so that each 
Aboriginal woman entering the program will have an 
individualised plan that addresses how they would like 
to be supported to connect with their culture. The plan 
is inclusive of, but not limited to:

• Family Tree, clarification of clan/nation, language 
group, spirit guide and land and/or water.

• Cultural connections and story of parent’s country.
• Cultural Journey so far and how they identify as 

Aboriginal Women.
• Cultural Aspirations and Significant Events
• Confirmation of Aboriginality
• Health Care plan with AMS
• Exit Planning – Connection to Community, 

Aboriginal Organisations and Resources post 
Guthrie House.

Mariann has made changes to the physical environment 
at Guthrie House to increase our inclusivity. Changes 
include organizing a glass ‘Acknowledgment to 
Country’ plaque for our hallway, re-writing our 
‘Acknowledgement to Country’ for our resident and 
team meetings, creating a notice board space in the 
common area for cultural information and events, 
framing a NSW Languages Map, an Aboriginal Map of 
Australia and the 2018 International Women’s Day/
NAIDOC Poster of ‘Because of her we can’ for the 
residents group/lounge room.

Guthrie House has commenced the process led by 
Mariann of developing a Reconciliation Action Plan 
(RAP) and seeking endorsement from Reconciliation 
Australia. Our RAP working party has met twice and we 
hope to have this finalised by the end of 2020. We have 
continued to run our cultural groups with events for the 
following significant dates, NAIDOC, MABO Day, 1967 
Referendum and Reconciliation Week held this year.

Cultural program
An individualised plan that addresses how 
Aboriginal woman would like to be supported to 
connect with their culture. 
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At the beginning stages of COVID-19 risk mitigation 
planning and restrictions, Guthrie House made the 
decision to narrow our service provision and only 
support pregnant women and women with children 
in their care in a remote capacity. Although we have 
returned to supporting women in a residential setting, 
out of a public crisis has come an amazing opportunity. 
What we have learnt from supporting this cohort 
remotely has been consolidated into a new program to 
be offered to our clients that we will continue to run at 
Guthrie House into the future.

Guthrie House Remote Child and Family Program is for 
Aboriginal women who are either pregnant, have babies 
or children and who need continued post crisis support 
once they return to the community after graduating 
the Guthrie House residential program. The women in 
this program will be homeless or at risk of homelessness 
and can be returning to communities all over NSW. It 
is a structured program of weekly parenting, healthy 
relationships and AOD relapse prevention groups, 
individual weekly case management support, daily check-
ins and referrals to surrounding support networks. 

We work with women to provide them with a sense of 
achievement and purpose as they progress in learning 
new life skills, clients also have an option to work with 
the Guthrie House Aboriginal Support Worker on a 
weekly basis. Our Remote Child and Family Program is 
focused on continued advocacy and provides support 
with legal, family and housing matters.

We are so excited to be able to develop our current 
Child and Family Program and be creative with what we 
have learnt about remote learning and support in this 
changing world.

Remote Child and 
Family program
This program will provide opportunities for better 
outcomes for women by providing a continuation 
of care upon completion of the residential program.
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Guthrie House is committed to the health and well 
being of our clients. Tobacco is the greatest preventable 
cause of cancer with 1 in 8 cancer cases and 1 in 5 
cancer deaths caused by smoking. Lung cancer remains 
the largest cause of death in Australia, with about 
81% of lung cancer cases estimated to be as a result of 
tobacco smoking.

The prevalence of smoking is significantly higher among 
disadvantaged groups making smoking an important 
social justice issue. Smoking damages people’s health, 
increases their financial stress, contributes to cycles 
of poverty and erodes their quality of life. Aboriginal 
people are almost three times more likely to smoke 
compared to non-Indigenous Australians (Cancer 
Council NSW).

Research suggests that cigarette smoking increases the 
likelihood of relapse among people in recovery from 
substance use disorder and that helping patients quit 
and remain abstinent from smoking may improve their 
chances for sustained recovery from use of other drugs.

At Guthrie House we had noticed that our clients had 
abstained from cigarette smoking in non-smoking 
facilities such as Correctional Facilities and other 
AOD Services only to recommence smoking while at 
our service.

COVID-19 risk mitigation also made smoking within 
the service a topic of concern due to increased risk of 
transmission due to the frequent hand-to-mouth action 
of smoking, the sharing of cigarettes, people smoking 
together (in close proximity) in a shared location, and 
the use of another person’s disposed cigarette butt.

We contacted the Cancer Council to find the most 
effective way for systemic change. Tackling Tobacco 
is a step-by-step program that aims to reduce 
smoking related harm amongst priority populations 
in NSW that experience high levels of social and 
economic disadvantage.

Tackling tobacco
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The program is made up of six core elements that form 
an organisation-wide approach to addressing smoking.

1. Committed Leadership
2. Comprehensive Smoking Policies
3. Supporting Systems
4. Training and Follow-up
5. Monitoring and Data Elements
6. Consistent Quit Support

To date Guthrie House has reviewed and updated all of 
our policies to consider a smoke-free environment. We 
have reviewed our programs to include Tackling Tobacco 
into our SMART Recovery Program, Health Program 
and with the help of Tackling Tobacco created a pilot 

workshop for our women. We have introduced Nicotine 
Replacement Therapy onsite for further support and 
resources have been developed for relapse prevention 
in case management support to assist our women to 
identify high risk situations and assist with lapses/
relapses.

All staff have completed training with the Cancer Council 
that includes impacts on our clients, understanding 
nicotine dependency, how to speak with clients around 
smoking, the 5 step brief intervention and different types 
of NRT and how to use them successfully.

We are very excited to be moving into this next phase 
of support for our clients and will continue to review 
through regular evaluations.
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Our partners

Guthrie House has both formal and informal partnerships with an array of providers to ensure that the women 
and children we support are receiving high quality wrap around supports. We wish to thank you for your ongoing 
support. Of particular note are:

• Innari Housing Inc.
• Parole Units – Dilwynia, Emu Plains and Silverwater 

Womens Correctional Centres
• Leichhardt Community Corrections
• Bridge, Metro (MOU with Guthrie House), St George 

– Port Jackson and Hume Community Housing
• Chana Levin
• Rainbow Lodge
• TwoGood
• Bronwyn Burnett
• Community Restoration Centre (CRC)
• Gorman Unit
• Curves Gym Petersham
• Detour House
• Dress for Success
• Drug Court Teams
• Enmore Medical Practice
• Enmore 7 day Pharmacy
• Exodus Foundation
• Burwood and Strawberry Hills FACS
• Heather Devine Art Therapy
• Hepatitis NSW – Live Hep C Free Program JD, 

Chantelle and Sinead
• Stuff the Bus
• Jarrah House
• Glebe House
• Leichhardt Womens Community Health Centre

• Marrickville Mental Health Team
• Marrickville Police
• CatholicCare - Lewisham
• NADA
• Nepean Hospital - Detoxification Unit
• Newtown Neighbourhood Centre
• NCIE
• Petersham Salvation Army
• Phoebe House
• Relationships Australia
• RPA Alcohol and Other Drugs Services, Social Work 

and Mental Health Teams
• Justice Health
• Tresillian Family Care Centre
• Womens Justice Network
• Susan Kelly
• Synapse (MOU)
• Womens AOD Network
• Kathleen York House
• Kamira
• Konnect Employment
• Weave
• Wesley Mission – Financial Literacy (MOU)
• Sydney Buddist Centre - Meditation
• Sydney Women’s Counselling Service
• WHO’s New Beginnings
• Haymarket – The Waiting List Support Service
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Holidays at 
Guthrie House

Holidays can be a difficult time of the year for some of 
our clients if they are not able to connect with their 
families and loved ones. Due to this, we work hard to 
make it as special as we can. In the months leading up 
to all special holidays, Guthrie House staff work closely 
with the women to identify a safe and loving space for 
them to celebrate the holidays with their loved ones.

During this process our staff and women collaborate 
with Corrective Services, Drug Court and Family and 
Community Services to explore all variables, develop 
safety plans and grant permission for the women to 
have this much needed time.

For the women who are not able to be with loved ones, 
we celebrate at Guthrie House. Our favourite way to 
acknowledge any holiday is with food! That being said 
we connect to our local community events to maximise 
the spirit of the day.

Due to limited funds our women can find it near 
impossible to buy presents for their children. Most 
women will work hard to save some of their money, 
but we are also lucky enough to have some wonderful 
partners in the community who collect donations to 
subsidise what our women can afford. 

A number of our women are from Culturally and 
Linguistically Diverse backgrounds. At Guthrie House 
we make an effort to acknowledge and where possible 
celebrate all holidays. Any date that is significant 
to our women is discussed in case management and 
celebration is not just supported it is encouraged. 

We would like to thank our friends in the community; 
Stuff the Bus, Curves – Petersham and Good360 for all 
of your donations to Guthrie House at Christmas last 
year. The difference that you make to the lives of our 
women and their children is significant.



Lisa
Lisa’s struggle with addiction is deeply connected 
to the various stressed-induced and past traumatic 
experiences she has had to endure throughout her 
lifetime. Due to these prolonged and repeated traumas 
Lisa desolately suppressed a lot of emotional and 
mental pain which included complex PTSD related 
sleep disorders. This consequently led her to develop 
a Methamphetamine dependence and to engage in 
high risk behaviours which inevitably resulted in 
homelessness and her lengthy affiliation with the 
criminal justice system.

Once again as an involuntary guest in one of NSW 
Correctional Centres for women and as her release date 
approached Lisa marked what she described as a turning 
point when she recognised the extent of her drug 
problem and made the difficult decision to seek help to 
gain control over her life.

Lisa explained how elated she felt when a prison official 
informed her that she had been approved to enter the 
Guthrie House residential program and for the first time 
in custody went to sleep that night filled with hope.

During her time at Guthrie House Lisa remained 
committed and worked extremely hard on her recovery 
as she eagerly participated in all groups and case 
management sessions. Lisa commenced therapy with an 
external councillor to help address, process and support 
her emotional well-being. Furthermore, Lisa continued 
to remain drug-free, evidenced by regular random 
urinalysis results and her consistency in behaviour 
indicated her desire for positive change was genuine.

Lisa successfully completed the Guthrie House 
residential program and with her desire to start a new 
life in a quiet country town several kilometres away 
where she is known by no-one, securing affordable and 
safe accommodation coupled by wrap around support 
services was certainly a challenge for all involved.

To date Lisa maintains a high motivation to be drug-
free as a law-abiding citizen and continues to be a 
productive member of the community whilst further 
developing growth.

Client journeys
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Angela
A face-to-face assessment was conducted with Angela 
whilst she was incarcerated. She was 25 weeks pregnant 
with twins and was emotional at the thought of possibly 
having to give birth whilst in gaol. Angela was offered 
a bed at Guthrie House, however, she needed to wait 
six weeks before her parole was approved. Angela 
eventually arrived at Guthrie House and work began 
immediately on activating her housing application. 
Angela was homeless and had experienced domestic 
violence with her ex-partner, there was an AVO out 
against him.

It was discovered that Angela had many housing 
applications cancelled over the years, some of them 
were mistakes. Angela’s worker asked for an appeal and 
after an investigation of previous cancelled applications, 
Angela’s application was approved and back dated to 
2013 and she was given urgent priority status.

Angela gave birth to her twin babies four weeks 
premature. The babies spent many weeks in the special 
care nursery and Angela was permitted to remain 
on site at the hospital. Angela remained a client of 
Guthrie House whilst she stayed in the hospital, she 
had case management weekly and was supported in 
all her DCJ meetings. Once the babies reached their 
expected due date, they were discharged and returned 
safely with Angela to her mother’s home in rural NSW. 
The conditions were cramped, however, within eight 
weeks of Angela moving to her mother’s home, she was 
offered a property in the allocation zone she chose in 
Sydney. Angela was thrilled to be moving to Sydney, to 
be starting a new life with her babies and away from her 
old life.

Lisa explained how elated she felt when a prison 
official informed her that she had been approved 
to enter the Guthrie House residential program 
and for the first time in custody went to sleep 
that night filled with hope. 
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Rowena
Rowena attempted the Guthrie House program twice 
within a 12 month period. The first time that she 
attempted the program, she had a rocky start and 
left the program within a month as she struggled to 
stop using drugs on the program. But Rowena was 
determined to turn her life around and three months 
later she re-applied to come to Guthrie House. She 
wanted to give it another go. Rowena completed detox 
and was admitted back into Guthrie House. On her 
second attempt, she thrived and successfully completed 
the program.

Rowena was keen to keep going with her success and 
highly motivated to make changes but was homeless 
and without family support. She commenced the 
Outreach program, committing to 12 months support 
in the community and was successful in obtaining 
a transitional house through a community partner. 
Rowena started well in the early stage and quickly set up 
her new home demonstrating how house proud she was.

To free her time up to look for work and/or training 
opportunities, Rowena commenced a methadone 
reduction program with her prescriber with the aim to 
transfer to monthly Buprenorphine injections. Over 
the course of the next few months, she courageously 
achieved this.

However, just when Rowena was settling into a routine 
with the program, COVID-19 hit and along with it, came 
restrictions on face-to-face contact with the Guthrie 
House Outreach Worker and the community in general. 
Rowena did not have a computer to access online groups 
but managed to hold her tenancy and keep on track 
with her recovery. During this time, Rowena was able 
to access phone support from our Outreach Worker on a 
regular basis.

Home visits recommenced one COVID restrictions 
lightened and Rowena has now been stable in her 
tenancy for seven months. She has also commenced a 
hospitality and cooking program and is “loving it”. She 
looks forward to it every week and hopes to join their 
paid traineeship at the start of the year.
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Axel Anthonisz,  
Intake and Outreach Case Manager

Axel commenced with Guthrie House in 2010 and 
brings significant AOD experience to the role of Intake 
and Outreach Case Manager having worked as a Health 
Education Officer and Administrator at the Resource 
and Education Program for Injecting Drug Users 
(REPIDU) at Redfern.

Axel plays a key role at Guthrie House through 
delivering the Smart Recovery Program and Womens 
Choice and Change to the clients participating in 
both the residential and outreach components of the 
Program and leading the Australian Service Excellence 
Standards (ASES) (Certificate) accreditation process 
through QIP (Quality Innovation Performance).

Axel holds a Bachelor of Social Science (Criminology), 
Diploma in Community Service and Welfare and a 
Diploma in NGO Leadership and Management.

Giselle Tran,  
Residential Support Worker

Giselle is our Residential Support Worker (RSW) and 
has been employed at Guthrie House for 7 years. Giselle 
has a Certificate IV in Community Welfare (AOD & 
Mental Health), a Diploma in Community Welfare.

Giselle has 13 years of extensive experience within the 
community services sector. Her previous experience 
includes: AOD Case Work, support work in specialist 
homelessness services and has also supported women 
and children involved in domestic and family violence.

Gracia Anwar,  
Administration and Finance Officer

Gracia joined Guthrie House in August 2018 as the 
Finance and Administration Officer. Gracia brings 
a wealth of experience and knowledge in office 
management, finance, marketing and executive support.

Our dedicated team
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Julie Brasher,  
Case Manager – Family Specialist

Julie is a counsellor and commenced as a case manager 
at Guthrie House in October 2015. Julie has a Bachelor 
of Social Sciences (Counselling).

Julie commenced in the position of Family Worker 
in February 2016 and currently works with pregnant 
women supporting them through antenatal and on to 
postnatal care. Julie assists women who have children in 
their care and also women who have children involved in 
FaCS, Children’s Court and Family Court matters.

Julie brings with her several years of experience in the 
AOD sector, having worked at other residential facilities 
both in New South Wales and Victoria. Julie provides 
group facilitation around relapse prevention, Women’s 
Choice and Change, Circle of Security, My Kids and Me 
and Drumbeat.

Laurell Magnusson,  
Case Manager

Laurel has been employment with Guthrie House 
since June 2014. Laurell has a Bachelor of Community 
Welfare degree as well as several other community 
sector qualifications. Laurell brings with her 9 years 
experience in the sector.

Laurell delivers the SMART Recovery Program and 
the My Kids and Me Parenting Program. Laurell 
provides case management to both Residential and 
Outreach Clients.

Leah Milligan, 
Health Worker

Leah has a Bachelor Science in Nutrition and Population 
Health and holds a Diploma in Community Welfare. Leah 
has worked in women’s crisis accommodation services 
for 20 years and the health needs of women experiencing 
homelessness has always been a key focus area.

Leah is the Health Worker at Guthrie House; her role 
involves assisting clients with their health outcomes 
and she achieves this though one-on-one consultation 
with the clients and facilitates group education 
sessions on a variety of health, physical activity and 
nutrition topics.

Mariann Smith, 
Aboriginal Support Worker

Yaama

Firstly I would like to acknowledge the traditional 
custodians of the lands where I work and pay my 
respects to elders past and present.

I am a descendent of the Kamilaroi Nation, a proud 
Gomeroi woman from Moree Northern NSW.

I have worked in the community services and disability 
sector for over 10 years. Most of my work experiences 
have been working with Aboriginal women, children 
and their families. I also have worked in various roles 
and positions across a number of remote, rural and 
urban communities of NSW in government, non-
government, mainstream and Aboriginal community 
organisations, where I have developed and maintained 
ongoing skills, partnerships and networks.

I have a Bachelor of Health Sciences Degree, although 
most of my skills and knowledge are learnt through my 
respect for my elders and lived personal experiences.

Wanda Kozinski,  
Residential Support Worker

Wanda is the longest-serving staff member at Guthrie 
House, who has been with us for more than 20 years. 
Wanda has an Associate Diploma in Social Science 
and an Advanced Certificate in Community Welfare. 
Wanda brings to the role extensive experience in the 
non-government sector, in particular community-based 
agencies; and her knowledge, skills and experience are 
an asset to the team.

Wendy Burns, 
Residential Support Worker

Wendy has been employed at Guthrie House for the past 
6 years in the capacity of Residential Support Worker 
(RSW). Wendy has a Bachelor of Social Science degree 
majoring in Criminology and a Diploma of Drug and 
Alcohol. Wendy brings extensive experience to Guthrie 
House through having worked at Juvenile Justice NSW.

Staff farewells
We would like to acknowledge Lillian Khan’s contribution to the service in her role as 
Aboriginal Support Worker in July of this year as well as Joanne Naylor in her role as Acting 
Manager, July-January and Senior Project Officer, February-June.
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Staff training
Guthrie House has a strong commitment to professional development. 

Staff have participated in the following:

• Monthly Individual Supervision and monthly group 
supervision with an external supervisor to support 
staff with complex case reviews and staff well-being.

• Treating Complex Trauma
• First Aid

• Money Minded
• Asset management training for SHS and smaller 

CHIP CHIA NSW
• Infection Control Training - NSW Health COVID 19
• Tackling Tobacco

Axel Anthonisz Guthrie House’s Outreach and Intake Case Manager graduated from a Bachelor of Social Science 
(Criminology) this year.  An amazing feat whilst working full time.  Congratulations Axel!



Kathryn Key, 
Chairperson

Kathryn has worked in the NGO sector for more than 
20 years. She has worked across a range of different 
services, including substance misuse treatment, 
HIV prevention and support, disability services, 
domestic violence services and in out of home care. 
She has worked as a counsellor and case manager, and 
later in senior roles in service management, clinical 
supervision, and policy development. She holds a 
Bachelor of Applied Social Science (Counselling) and is 
in her final year of a Master of Social Work. Kathryn 
is passionate about social justice and improving social 
outcomes for marginalised people in our communities.

Tiffany Slater, 
Treasurer

Tiffany joined the board of Guthrie House in December 
2018. She holds a Bachelor of Accounting (Accounting, 
Management), a Graduate Diploma of Chartered 
Accounting, Accounting Chartered Accountants 
Australia and New Zealand and a Master of Science in 
Coaching Psychology.

Lesley-Anne Davies, 
Secretary

Ms Davies has spent 25 years working in criminal 
justice. In the UK, she worked with young offenders 
and their families, in restorative justice and the 
approved accommodation services in Northern 
England. In Australia, Ms Davies has worked with 
Community Corrections, and was seconded to Tresillian 
Family Care Service to work with the Mothering at a 
Distance program which was rolled out across women’s 
correctional centres in NSW. Currently working for 
Community Corrections, she was the Manager of 
Guthrie House during 2012-2013. Ms Davies has a 
strong interest in social justice issues in relation to 
women and has a degree from the University of Central 
Lancashire, and a Post Graduate Diploma in Social Work 
from Liverpool University in the UK.

Alexandra Shehadie, 
Director

Alexandra (Alex) Shehadie is an expert in gender 
equality and has extensive experience in leading large-
scale projects, focusing on organisational culture and 
the treatment of women.

Among the major organisations she has assisted in 
relation to gender equality are:

Board of Directors
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• The Australian Defence Force
• The Australian Federal Police
• Qantas
• The University of Sydney 7 residential colleges
• James Cook University
• The University of Canberra
• Airservices Australia (ongoing to end of May 2020)

Alex has an impressive track record in building strong 
relationships with stakeholders and is held in high 
regard by colleagues and clients alike as trustworthy, 
insightful, a strong strategic thinker and as someone 
who relies on strong evidence to build a case for change.

As well as her project work Alex sits on several 
boards including the Victoria Police Force’s Corporate 
Advisory Group.

Alex has worked in senior roles in the Commonwealth 
and NSW Public Sector, including as Executive Director 
of the NSW Office for Women.

She has also practiced as a solicitor, including at a 
Community Legal Centre.

In 2014 Alex was named one of Westpac and the 
Australian Financial Review’s Women of Influence.

Desiree Leha, 
Director

Desiree is a woman of Aboriginal (Birri Gubba, Wakka 
Wakka) and Tongan descent who joined the Guthrie 
House Board in April of 2020. Desiree grew up in 
Sydney’s inner west on Gadigal country and is currently 
a practicing Solicitor with Terri Janke and Company, an 
boutique commercial law and consultancy firm which 
specialises in Indigenous Cultural and Intellectual 
Property. She holds a Bachelor of Social Work (Hons)/ 
Law and has previously held positions in the health, 
community, housing and government sectors. Desiree 
is passionate about the empowerment of women, social 
justice and Indigenous self-determination.

Becky Wood, 
Director

Becky Wood is the Global Service Leader, Rail & Mass 
Transit at engineering, design, and advisory company 
Aurecon. A rail infrastructure delivery specialist, 
Becky is responsible for direction and delivery of major 
projects particularly in Australia and New Zealand 
and across Asia, the Middle East and Africa. These 
include Auckland City Rail Link, Gold Coast Light Rail, 
Mauritius Metro Express light rail, Melbourne Metro, 
and several Sydney Metro projects such as Sydenham 
Station Junction.
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Becky joined Aurecon from Transport for NSW where 
she was the Executive Director, Fleet Program Delivery, 
responsible for the $6 billion program of new heavy rail 
rolling stock and ferry vessels for the State.

In previous roles, Becky has managed a range of 
complex and significant major rail programs with past 
leadership positions including Director Rail Major 
Projects and Growth for the UK’s Department for 
Transport where she was the government sponsor for 
the £15 billion Crossrail Project and played lead roles on 
the Thameslink, Intercity Express and national network 
electrification programs.

Becky is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of England & Wales, and a graduate 
of the Said Oxford Business School Major Projects 
Leadership Academy & Executive Leadership in Major 
Projects program with the John Grill Centre for Project 
Leadership at the University of Sydney. In 2018, she 
was named one of the top 50 public sector women in 
NSW and in 2019 became the Chief Executive Women 
Scholarship holder allowing her to study Interpersonal 
Dynamics at Stanford Graduate School of Business 
in California.

Eve McGregor, 
Director

Eve McGregor is a lawyer and has worked as an in-
house lawyer for a number of corporations in various 
industries including Tabcorp, Commercial Radio 
Australia, The Wiggles and Quantium, where she was 
deputy General Counsel and Privacy Officer.

She is currently General Counsel at a software security 
company, Secure Code Warrior Limited.

In addition to her commercial legal expertise, she has 
worked at the Art’s Law Centre and was instrumental in 
setting up HALV (HIVS Aids Lega Centre), and the pro 
bono legal service for Lou’s Place, a refuge for women 
located in Darlinghurst, Sydney.

Christine Duggan, 
Executive Director/Manager

Christine has over 20 years’ experience working with 
non-government agencies in the social welfare field. She 
has a BA Community Welfare and is in her final year 
of M Social Work. Christine has a background in Child 
Protection through Family and Communi ty Services, 
Mental Health and Youth Homelessness, in particular 
management of several NGOs as well as Community 
Development and Alternate Education Programs.
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Your directors present their report on the Co-Operative 
for the financial year ended 30 June 2020.

Directors
The names and particulars of the directors of the Co-
Operative holding office during or since the end of the 
financial year are:

Brenda Bartlett (resigned 16 January 2020)

Lesley-Anne Davies

Christine Duggan

Desiree Leha (appointed 17 April 2020)

Kathryn Louise Key (appointed 26 November 2019)

Eve McGregor (appointed 1 May 2020)

Susan McKendry (resigned 1 April 2020)

Eleni North (resigned 26 November 2019)

Alexandra Shehadie (appointed 9 Sept 2019)

Tiffany Slater

Becky Wood (appointed 14 April 2020)

The directors listed above fulfil their duties in an honorary 
capacity and are not remunerated for their service other 
than Christine Duggan who is also the manager of the 
Co-Operative and is paid a commercial salary.

Principal activities and performance
The principal activities of the Co-Operative during the 
course of the financial year were to provide an inner 
city transitional supported accommodation service 
for women who have been affected by the criminal 
justice system.

During the financial year, the Co-operative has been 
impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. Revenues from 
client rentals have declined by approximately 50% due 
to the implementation of social distancing practices. 
The Co-operative believes that these rentals will return 
to normal. There were no other significant changes in 
the nature of the activities of the Co-Operative during 
the year.

The surplus of the Co-Operative for the year ended 
30 June 2020 was $16,420 (2019: $12,750 surplus). 
This amount has been calculated in accordance with 
Australian Accounting Standards (AASB’s). This is 
the first set of financial statements in which AASB 16 
Leases has been applied. Under the transition method 

Directors’ Report
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chosen, comparative information has not been restated. 
The 2020 results are therefore not directly comparable 
to prior years however the effect is not material.

Review of operations
In the opinion of the directors and having regard to the 
COVID-19 impact, the Co-Operative’s operations during 
the year performed as expected.

Dividends
In accordance with the Co-Operative’s rules, no 
dividends, distributions or rebates may be paid to the 
members of the Co-Operative.

Future developments
The Co-Operative expects to maintain the present 
level of operations and hence there are no likely 
developments in future financial years.

Environmental issues
The Co-operative’s operations are not regulated by any 
significant environmental regulation under a law of the 
Commonwealth or of a state or territory.

After balance date events
Other than the continued impact of the Covid-19 
pandemic, no known matters or circumstances have 
arisen since the end of the financial year which 
significantly affected or may affect the Co-Operative’s 
operations, the results of those operations or the state 
of affairs of the Co-Operative in future years.

Auditor’s independence declaration
The auditor’s independence declaration is set out on 
pages 48 and 49 and forms part of the directors’ report 
for financial year ended 30 June 2020.

This report is made in accordance with a resolution of 
the directors:

Kathryn Key
Board Chair 
Dated: August 31, 2020 

Board Meeting Attendance

Jul Aug Sep Oct* Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Eleni North ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔

Lesley-Anne Davies ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔

Brenda Bartlett ✔

Susan McKendry ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔

Tiffany Slater ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔

Christine Duggan ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔

Joanne Naylor ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔

Kathryn Key ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔

Eve McGregor ✔ ✔

Alexandra Shehadie ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔ ✔

Becky Wood ✔ ✔ ✔

Desiree Leha ✔

* AGM
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ABN 27 276 087 361 
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 

2020  2019 
Note $  $ 

   
CLASSIFICATION BY NATURE    

   
Revenues from ordinary activities 2 1,164,721  1,102,071 
     
Employee benefits expense (794,963) (765,445)
     
Depreciation & amortisation  (21,917)  (15,930)
     
Resident expenses  (69,416)  (60,046)
     
Other expenses from ordinary activities  (262,005)  (247,900)

Surplus from ordinary activities before income tax expense  16,420  12,750 

     
Income tax (expense)/benefit relating to ordinary activities  -  - 
     
Surplus from ordinary activities after income tax expense
attributable to the member of the Co-Operative 16,420 12,750 
     

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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Page 6 
 
 

BALANCE SHEET 
AS AT 30 JUNE 2020 

Note 2020  2019 
$  $ 

     
CURRENT ASSETS     
Cash and cash equivalents 3 514,538 764,588 
Receivables 4 111,198 14,909 
Other 5 4,835 25,489 
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS  630,571 804,986 
    
NON-CURRENT ASSETS    
Investments 6 4,987 4,987 
Property, plant and equipment 7 287,658 276,756 
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS  292,645 281,743 

   
TOTAL ASSETS  923,216 1,086,729 
    
CURRENT LIABILITIES    
Payables 8 65,742 97,725 
Other 9 107,292 283,895 
Provisions 10 51,371 52,302 
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES  224,405 433,922 

   
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES    
Other 
Provisions 

9
10 

18,639 
45,457 

-
34,512 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES  64,096 34,512 
   

TOTAL LIABILITIES 288,501 468,434

NET ASSETS  634,715 618,295 

FUNDS    
General reserve 129 129
Accumulated funds  634,586 618,616 

TOTAL FUNDS 634,715 618,295 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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BALANCE SHEET 
AS AT 30 JUNE 2020 

Note 2020  2019 
$  $ 

     
CURRENT ASSETS     
Cash and cash equivalents 3 514,538 764,588 
Receivables 4 111,198 14,909 
Other 5 4,835 25,489 
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS  630,571 804,986 
    
NON-CURRENT ASSETS    
Investments 6 4,987 4,987 
Property, plant and equipment 7 287,658 276,756 
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS  292,645 281,743 

   
TOTAL ASSETS  923,216 1,086,729 
    
CURRENT LIABILITIES    
Payables 8 65,742 97,725 
Other 9 107,292 283,895 
Provisions 10 51,371 52,302 
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES  224,405 433,922 

   
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES    
Other 
Provisions 

9
10 

18,639 
45,457 

-
34,512 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES  64,096 34,512 
   

TOTAL LIABILITIES 288,501 468,434

NET ASSETS  634,715 618,295 

FUNDS    
General reserve 129 129
Accumulated funds  634,586 618,616 

TOTAL FUNDS 634,715 618,295 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 

 General 
reserve

 Accumulated 
funds

 Total 

$  $  $ 
       
Balance 1 July 2018  129 605,416 605,545 
    
Surplus for the year - 12,750 12,750
    
Balance 30 June 2019  129 618,166 618,295 

   
Surplus for the year  - 16,420 16,420 
    
Balance 30 June 2020  129 634,586 634,715 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 

2020  2019 
Note $  $ 

Cash flows from operating activities:    
   

Receipts from members and customers  1,158,851 1,490,424 
Payments to suppliers and employees  (1,406,990) (1,124,522)
Interest and dividends received 5,879 5,540
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities 11 (242,268) 371,422 

Cash flows from investing activities:    
   

Payment for property, plant and equipment  (32,818) (15,930)
Increase in lease liabilities 
Net cash (outflow) from investing activities 

 25,036 
(7,782) 

-
(15,930)

    
Net increase/(decrease) in cash held  (250,050) 355,512 
Cash at the beginning of the financial year  764,588 409,706 
    
Cash at the end of the financial year 3 514,538 764,588 

                                The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 

2020  2019 
Note $  $ 

Cash flows from operating activities:    
   

Receipts from members and customers  1,158,851 1,490,424 
Payments to suppliers and employees  (1,406,990) (1,124,522)
Interest and dividends received 5,879 5,540
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities 11 (242,268) 371,422 

Cash flows from investing activities:    
   

Payment for property, plant and equipment  (32,818) (15,930)
Increase in lease liabilities 
Net cash (outflow) from investing activities 

 25,036 
(7,782) 

-
(15,930)

    
Net increase/(decrease) in cash held  (250,050) 355,512 
Cash at the beginning of the financial year  764,588 409,706 
    
Cash at the end of the financial year 3 514,538 764,588 

                                The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 

Note 1. Statement of Significant Accounting Policies 

General Information and Statement of Compliance 

The financial report has been prepared as a Tier 2 general purpose financial report which has been prepared in 
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements adopted by the Australian 
Accounting Standards Board, the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012, the Australian
Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Regulations 2013 and the Co-Operatives Act 1992 (NSW). In the opinion 
of the directors, the Co-Operative is not publicly accountable.   

This financial report is for the entity Guthrie House Co-Operative Limited as an individual entity.  Guthrie House 
Co-Operative Limited is a Co-Operative, registered and domiciled in New South Wales. 

Guthrie House Co-Operative Limited is primarily involved in the provision of an inner city transitional supported 
accommodation service for women who have been affected by the criminal justice system. 

The following is a summary of the material accounting policies adopted by the Co-Operative in the preparation of 
the financial report. The accounting policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated. 

Reporting Basis and Conventions 

This financial report has been prepared on an accruals basis and is based on historical costs modified by the 
revaluation of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities for which the fair value basis of 
accounting has been applied. 

Accounting Policies 

(a) Revenue Recognition

Government and other grants are recognised when the Co-Operative obtains control or the right to receive 
the grant, it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the entity, and the amount of the grant can be 
measured reliably. The Co-Operative does not obtain control of a grant until it has provided the services and 
met the conditions that make it eligible to control it. Grants received in advance are deferred as a liability 
and not recognised until the Co-Operative has provided the services and met the conditions.  

Revenue from the rendering of a service is recognised upon the delivery of the service to customers.  

Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest rate method, which, for floating rate financial 
assets is the rate inherent in the instrument.  Dividend revenue is recognised when the right to receive a 
dividend has been established. 

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST). 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 

Note 1. Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont.)  

(b) Goods and Services Tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except 
where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). In these 
circumstances, the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense. 

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of GST. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable 
to, the ATO is included as a current asset or liability in the statement of financial position. 

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis.  The GST components of cash 
flows arising from investing and financing activities which is receivable from, or payable to, the ATO are 
classified as operating cash flows. 

(c) Employee Benefits 

 Provision is made for the Co-Operative’s liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by 
employees to balance date.  Employee benefits that are expected to be settled within one year, together 
with benefits arising from wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave, which will be settled after one 
year, have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled plus related on-
costs.  Other employee benefits payable later than one year have been measured at the present value of 
the estimated future cash outflows to be made for those benefits. 

 Contributions are made by the Co-Operative to employee superannuation funds and are charged as 
expenses when incurred. 

(d) Income Tax

 The Co-Operative has been classified as a tax-exempt charitable institution under section 50-5 of the Income 
Tax Assessment Act 1997.

(e) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term 
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. 

(f) Property, Plant and Equipment 

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 

Note 1. Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont.)  

(b) Goods and Services Tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except 
where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). In these 
circumstances, the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense. 

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of GST. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable 
to, the ATO is included as a current asset or liability in the statement of financial position. 

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis.  The GST components of cash 
flows arising from investing and financing activities which is receivable from, or payable to, the ATO are 
classified as operating cash flows. 

(c) Employee Benefits 

 Provision is made for the Co-Operative’s liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by 
employees to balance date.  Employee benefits that are expected to be settled within one year, together 
with benefits arising from wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave, which will be settled after one 
year, have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled plus related on-
costs.  Other employee benefits payable later than one year have been measured at the present value of 
the estimated future cash outflows to be made for those benefits. 

 Contributions are made by the Co-Operative to employee superannuation funds and are charged as 
expenses when incurred. 

(d) Income Tax

 The Co-Operative has been classified as a tax-exempt charitable institution under section 50-5 of the Income 
Tax Assessment Act 1997.

(e) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term 
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. 

(f) Property, Plant and Equipment 

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 

Note 1. Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont.)  

(f) Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont.) 

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets less their residual values over 
their useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation 
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate 
accounted for on a prospective basis.  
The following useful lives are used in the calculation of depreciation: 

 Building Improvements 40 years 
 Plant and equipment 4–10 years 
 Furniture and fixtures 4–10 years 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal 
or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the 
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.  

(g) Impairment 

At the end of each reporting period, the Co-Operative reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to 
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such 
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the 
impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, 
the Co-Operative estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. 
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated 
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating 
units for which reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.  

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value 
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate 
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for 
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.  

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying 
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An 
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued 
amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.  

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) 
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount 
does not exceed the carrying amount that could have been determined had no impairment loss been 
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is 
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which 
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 

Note 1. Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont.)  

(g) Impairment (Cont.) 

Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets are recognised by reclassifying the losses 
accumulated in the fair value reserve in equity, to profit or loss. The cumulative loss that is recognised from 
equity to profit or loss is the difference between the acquisition cost, net of any principal repayment and 
amortisation, and the current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in profit or loss. 
Changes in impairment provisions attributable to application of the effective interest method are reflected as 
a component of interest income. 

Subsequent recovery in the fair value of an impaired available-for-sale equity security is recognised in other 
comprehensive income. 

(h) Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the entity has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, 
for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably 
measured. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle 
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation.  

(i)  Financial instruments 

Financial assets 
Financial assets are recognised initially on the date at which the Co-Operative becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. 

The Co-Operative derecognises the financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a 
transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. 
Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Co-Operative is recognised as 
a separate asset or liability. 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position 
when and only when, the Co-Operative has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle 
on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.  

The Co-Operative has the following financial assets: loans and receivables, cash and cash equivalents and 
available-for-sale financial assets. 

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an 
active market. Such assets are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction 
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using effective 
interest method, less any impairment losses.  

Loans and receivables comprise cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables.  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 

Note 1. Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont.)  

(g) Impairment (Cont.) 

Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets are recognised by reclassifying the losses 
accumulated in the fair value reserve in equity, to profit or loss. The cumulative loss that is recognised from 
equity to profit or loss is the difference between the acquisition cost, net of any principal repayment and 
amortisation, and the current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in profit or loss. 
Changes in impairment provisions attributable to application of the effective interest method are reflected as 
a component of interest income. 

Subsequent recovery in the fair value of an impaired available-for-sale equity security is recognised in other 
comprehensive income. 

(h) Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the entity has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, 
for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably 
measured. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle 
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation.  

(i)  Financial instruments 

Financial assets 
Financial assets are recognised initially on the date at which the Co-Operative becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. 

The Co-Operative derecognises the financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a 
transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. 
Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Co-Operative is recognised as 
a separate asset or liability. 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position 
when and only when, the Co-Operative has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle 
on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.  

The Co-Operative has the following financial assets: loans and receivables, cash and cash equivalents and 
available-for-sale financial assets. 

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an 
active market. Such assets are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction 
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using effective 
interest method, less any impairment losses.  

Loans and receivables comprise cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables.  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 

Note 1. Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont.)  

(i)  Financial instruments (Cont.) 

Financial assets (Cont.) 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits with original maturities of three months 
or less. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Co-Operative’s cash 
management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement 
of cash flows.  

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available-for-
sale and that are not classified in any of the previous categories of financial assets. Subsequent to initial 
recognition, they are measured at fair value and changes therein, other than impairment losses, are 
recognised in other comprehensive income and presented in the fair value reserve in equity. When an 
investment is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss in equity is transferred to profit or loss. 

Available-for-sale financial assets comprise equity securities. The fair value of available-for-sale financial 
assets is determined by reference to their quoted closing bid price at the reporting date. 

Financial liabilities 
Financial liabilities are recognised initially on the date, which is the date that the Co-Operative becomes a 
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.  

The Co-Operative derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or 
cancelled or expired. 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position 
when, and only when, the Co-Operative has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either settle on 
a net basis to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.  

The Co-Operative classified financial liabilities into the other financial liabilities’ category. Such financial 
liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to 
initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. 

Other financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables.  

(j) Use of Estimates and Judgments  

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Australian Accounting Standards requires 
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting  
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.  Actual results may differ from 
these estimates. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 

Note 1. Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont.) 

(j) Use of Estimates and Judgments (Cont.) 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.  Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected. 

There are no judgements made by management in the application of the Australian Accounting Standards 
that have a significant effect on the financial report or estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment 
in the next year. 

(k) Comparative Figures

 Comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation for the current financial year 
where required by accounting standards or as a result of changes in accounting policy. 

(l) Application of New and Revised Accounting Standards 

Amendments to AASBs and the new Interpretations that are mandatorily effective for the current 
year 

In the current year, the association has applied the amendment to AASBs and new Interpretations issued 
by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) that are mandatorily effective for an accounting 
period that begins on or after 1 July 2019, and therefore relevant for the current year end.  

Standard Requirement 
AASB 16 Leases – right of use assets The Co-operative has leased a number of items of plant and 

equipment where the asset is capitalised as plant and 
equipment and the liability as a lease liability. 

The adoption of this standard has not had a material impact on the Co-Operative. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 

Note 1. Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont.) 

(j) Use of Estimates and Judgments (Cont.) 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.  Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected. 

There are no judgements made by management in the application of the Australian Accounting Standards 
that have a significant effect on the financial report or estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment 
in the next year. 

(k) Comparative Figures

 Comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation for the current financial year 
where required by accounting standards or as a result of changes in accounting policy. 

(l) Application of New and Revised Accounting Standards 

Amendments to AASBs and the new Interpretations that are mandatorily effective for the current 
year 

In the current year, the association has applied the amendment to AASBs and new Interpretations issued 
by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) that are mandatorily effective for an accounting 
period that begins on or after 1 July 2019, and therefore relevant for the current year end.  

Standard Requirement 
AASB 16 Leases – right of use assets The Co-operative has leased a number of items of plant and 

equipment where the asset is capitalised as plant and 
equipment and the liability as a lease liability. 

The adoption of this standard has not had a material impact on the Co-Operative. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 

 2020 2019
 $  $ 

Note 2.  Revenue   

Grants received  1,128,506   1,060,814 
Rental income  29,725   34,088 
Interest and dividends received  5,870 5,540 
Other income  620   1,629 

 1,164,721 1,102,071 

Note 3.  Cash and cash equivalents   

Cash at bank       77,449        627,875 
Cash on hand          500           1,000 
Cash on deposit       436,589        135,714 
 514,538 764,588 

Reconciliation of cash: 
Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the 
statement of cash flows is reconciled to items in the balance 
sheet as follows: 
   
Cash 514,538 764,588

Note 4.  Receivables 

Trade debtors 110,985 6,545 
Other debtors 214 8,364 
 111,199 14,909 

Note 5. Other assets 

Prepayments 4,835 25,489

Note 6. Investments 

Available-for-sale financial assets – listed securities 4,987 4,987 
(Market value $4,812   2019: $6,889)   
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 

 2020 2019
 $  $ 

   
Note 7.  Property, plant and equipment   

Building improvements:   
- At cost 407,535 407,535 
- Less accumulated depreciation (152,256) (140,869)
 255,279 266,666 
Plant and equipment   
- At cost 39,155 36,344 
- Less accumulated depreciation (33,854) (31,177)
 5,301 5,167 
Right of use assets 
- At cost 30,007 -
- Less accumulated amotisation (6,217) -
 23,790 -
Motor vehicles:   
- At cost 62,034 62,034 
- Less accumulated depreciation (62,034) (62,034)
 - - 
Furniture and fixtures   
- At cost 63,255 63,255
- Less accumulated depreciation (59,967) (58,332)
 3,288 4,923 
 287,658 276,756 

The Co-operative has title to the land on which the building improvements 
have been erected, as tenants in common with the New South Wales Land 
and Housing Corporation.  The Co-operative’s interest in this land is 51%.  In 
addition the Co-operative has entered into a lease with the New South Wales 
Land and Housing Corporation in respect to the latter’s 49% interest in this 
property as tenants in common.  Currently this lease is operating on a month 
to month arrangement with an annual lease cost of $1.  The use of this 
property is limited to the objects of the Co-operative with a process of 
approval being in place for alternative use and/or disposal. 

At the date of this report, the market value of the Co-operative’s 51% share
exceeds the cost of the building improvements booked.

Note 8.  Payables
   
Trade creditors 3,385 24,815
Accrued and other expenses 62,358 72,910 
 65,743 97,725 

Note 9.  Other liabilities   

Current 
Right of use leases 6,397 -
Grants in advance 100,895 283,895 
 65,743 283,895 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 

 2020 2019
 $  $ 

   
Note 7.  Property, plant and equipment   

Building improvements:   
- At cost 407,535 407,535 
- Less accumulated depreciation (152,256) (140,869)
 255,279 266,666 
Plant and equipment   
- At cost 39,155 36,344 
- Less accumulated depreciation (33,854) (31,177)
 5,301 5,167 
Right of use assets 
- At cost 30,007 -
- Less accumulated amotisation (6,217) -
 23,790 -
Motor vehicles:   
- At cost 62,034 62,034 
- Less accumulated depreciation (62,034) (62,034)
 - - 
Furniture and fixtures   
- At cost 63,255 63,255
- Less accumulated depreciation (59,967) (58,332)
 3,288 4,923 
 287,658 276,756 

The Co-operative has title to the land on which the building improvements 
have been erected, as tenants in common with the New South Wales Land 
and Housing Corporation.  The Co-operative’s interest in this land is 51%.  In 
addition the Co-operative has entered into a lease with the New South Wales 
Land and Housing Corporation in respect to the latter’s 49% interest in this 
property as tenants in common.  Currently this lease is operating on a month 
to month arrangement with an annual lease cost of $1.  The use of this 
property is limited to the objects of the Co-operative with a process of 
approval being in place for alternative use and/or disposal. 

At the date of this report, the market value of the Co-operative’s 51% share
exceeds the cost of the building improvements booked.

Note 8.  Payables
   
Trade creditors 3,385 24,815
Accrued and other expenses 62,358 72,910 
 65,743 97,725 

Note 9.  Other liabilities   

Current 
Right of use leases 6,397 -
Grants in advance 100,895 283,895 
 65,743 283,895 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 

 
 2020 2019
 $  $ 

   
Note 9.  Other liabilities (cont.)

Non-Current 
Right of use leases 18,639 -
   

Note 10.  Provisions 

Current 
Provision for employee entitlements 51,371 52,302

Non-Current 
Provision for employee entitlements 45,457 34,512

Note 11.  Cash flow information 

Reconciliation of Cash Flow from Operations with 
Profit/(Loss) from ordinary activities after income tax 

Profit/(loss) from ordinary activities after income tax 16,420 12,750 
Non-cash flows in profit from ordinary activities   

Depreciation 21,917 15,930 
Employee entitlements 10,013 24,835 
 31,930 40,765 

Changes in assets and liabilities
Decrease/(increase) in receivables (75,635) 98,237 
Decrease/(increase) in other debtors and prepayments - 9,567 

           Increase/(decrease) in trade creditors (31,983) 33,687 
           Increase/(decrease) in other creditors and accruals (183,000) 176,436 
 (290,618) 317,927 

Cash flow from operations (242,268) 371,442

Note 12.  Key management personnel compensation 

Directors of the Co-Operative receive no remuneration in relation to management of the Co-Operative. 

Note 13.  Auditor’s remuneration  

Assurance services 7,280 7,020
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 

 
 
Note 14. Capital and leasing commitments  2020 2019

 $  $ 
The Co-Operative does not have any capital commitments. 

Note 15.  Contingent liabilities    
    

There are no contingent liabilities.   

Note 16.  Events after the reporting period    

Other than the continuing effects of the Covid-19 pandemic, no other matters or circumstances have arisen that
may significantly affect the operations or the state of affairs of the Co-Operative in future periods. 

Note 17.  Related parties
   
There were no related party transactions during the year.  

No director has entered into a material contract with the Co-Operative since the end of the previous financial
year and there were no material contracts involving directors' interests existing at year end. 

Note 18. Financial Instruments

(a) Financial risk management – objectives and policies 
The Co-Operative’s financial instruments comprise cash, cash equivalents and publicly listed equities.  In addition 
the Co-Operative has various financial assets and liabilities including amounts receivable and amounts payable 
to trade and other creditors. 

The main risks arising from the Co-Operative’s financial instruments are interest rate risk, liquidity risk and credit 
risk.  The Co-Operative does not hold financial instruments denominated in foreign currencies and does not use 
derivative instruments to manage risks associated with its financial instruments.   

The Co-Operative’s policies for managing each of these risks are summarised below.  The policies are subject to 
approval by the directors and are reviewed regularly.  

Interest Rate Risk. The Co-Operative is exposed to interest rate fluctuations on its cash at bank and cash on 
deposit investments. The Co-Operative actively monitors interest rates for cash at bank and on deposit to 
maximise interest income.  The Co-Operative accepts the risk in relation to fixed interest securities as they are 
held to generate income on surplus funds. 

Liquidity Risk. The Co-Operative manages liquidity risk by monitoring forecast cash flows and ensuring that 
adequate liquid funds are maintained. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 

 
 
Note 14. Capital and leasing commitments  2020 2019

 $  $ 
The Co-Operative does not have any capital commitments. 

Note 15.  Contingent liabilities    
    

There are no contingent liabilities.   

Note 16.  Events after the reporting period    

Other than the continuing effects of the Covid-19 pandemic, no other matters or circumstances have arisen that
may significantly affect the operations or the state of affairs of the Co-Operative in future periods. 

Note 17.  Related parties
   
There were no related party transactions during the year.  

No director has entered into a material contract with the Co-Operative since the end of the previous financial
year and there were no material contracts involving directors' interests existing at year end. 

Note 18. Financial Instruments

(a) Financial risk management – objectives and policies 
The Co-Operative’s financial instruments comprise cash, cash equivalents and publicly listed equities.  In addition 
the Co-Operative has various financial assets and liabilities including amounts receivable and amounts payable 
to trade and other creditors. 

The main risks arising from the Co-Operative’s financial instruments are interest rate risk, liquidity risk and credit 
risk.  The Co-Operative does not hold financial instruments denominated in foreign currencies and does not use 
derivative instruments to manage risks associated with its financial instruments.   

The Co-Operative’s policies for managing each of these risks are summarised below.  The policies are subject to 
approval by the directors and are reviewed regularly.  

Interest Rate Risk. The Co-Operative is exposed to interest rate fluctuations on its cash at bank and cash on 
deposit investments. The Co-Operative actively monitors interest rates for cash at bank and on deposit to 
maximise interest income.  The Co-Operative accepts the risk in relation to fixed interest securities as they are 
held to generate income on surplus funds. 

Liquidity Risk. The Co-Operative manages liquidity risk by monitoring forecast cash flows and ensuring that 
adequate liquid funds are maintained. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 

 

Note 18. Financial Instruments (Cont.)

Credit Risk. The Co-Operative is exposed to credit risk in respect of amounts receivable and in respect of funds 
deposited with banks and other financial institutions.  The maximum exposure to credit risk as at 30 June 2020 is 
the carrying amounts of financial assets recognised in the balance sheet.  The Co-Operative holds no collateral 
as security and the credit quality of all financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired is consistently 
monitored in order to identify any potential adverse changes in the credit quality.  

The amounts receivable outstanding beyond the relevant terms are followed up continually. 

Funds deposited with banks and other financial institutions are approved by the directors.   

At the reporting date the Association does not have any material credit risk exposures to any single receivable or 
any bank or financial institution. 

(b) Fair values 
Carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities recorded in the financial statements represent their net fair 
values, as determined in accordance with the accounting policies disclosed in Note 1. 

(c) Interest rate risk 
The Co-Operative’s exposure to interest rate risk, which is the risk that a financial instruments value will fluctuate 
as a result of changes in market interest rates and the effective weighted average interest rates on those financial 
assets and financial liabilities, is as follows: 

 2020  2019
Weighted 
Average 
Effective  
Interest 
Rate

Floating 
Interest Rate 

Non-Interest
Bearing 

Total Weighted
Average 
Effective  
Interest Rate 

Floating 
Interest 
Rate 

Non-Interest
Bearing 

Total

Financial Assets         

Cash at Bank 0.1% 77,449 77,449 0.1% 627,875 627,875

Cash on Deposit <1% 436,589 436,589 2.2~2.3% 135,714 135,714 

Cash on Hand 500 500 1,000    1,000

Trade and Other 
Receivables 111,198 111,198      14,909   14,909 

Equities  4,987 4,987  4,987     4,987

514,038 116,685 630,723 763,589 20,896  784,485 

Financial Liabilities         

Trade and Other 
Payables 

   
65,742 65,742

   
97,725    97,725

         

65,742 65,742 97,725    97,725
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DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION 

The directors of the Co-Operative declare that: 

1. The financial statements and notes, as set out on pages 5 to 19 are in accordance with the Australian Charities 
and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and the Co-Operatives Act 1992 (NSW) and: 

(a) comply with Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Regime as described in Note 1 to the 
financial statements, the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Regulation 2013
and the Co-Operatives Act 1992 (NSW); and 

(b) give a true and fair view of the Co-Operative’s financial position as at 30 June 2020 and of the 
performance for the financial year ended on that date. 

2. In the directors’ opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Co-Operative will be able to pay its 
debts as and when they become due and payable. 

3.  In the directors’ opinion the Co-Operative is not publicly accountable. 

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the board of directors: 

 

   

Kathryn Key, Board Chair 

Dated: …31 August 2020 
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DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION 

The directors of the Co-Operative declare that: 

1. The financial statements and notes, as set out on pages 5 to 19 are in accordance with the Australian Charities 
and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and the Co-Operatives Act 1992 (NSW) and: 

(a) comply with Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Regime as described in Note 1 to the 
financial statements, the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Regulation 2013
and the Co-Operatives Act 1992 (NSW); and 

(b) give a true and fair view of the Co-Operative’s financial position as at 30 June 2020 and of the 
performance for the financial year ended on that date. 

2. In the directors’ opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Co-Operative will be able to pay its 
debts as and when they become due and payable. 

3.  In the directors’ opinion the Co-Operative is not publicly accountable. 

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the board of directors: 

 

   

Kathryn Key, Board Chair 

Dated: …31 August 2020 
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INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Audit  Report 

We have audited the financial report of Guthrie House Co-Operative Limited for the financial year ended 30 June 
2020, as set out on pages 5 to 20.    

In our opinion the financial report of Guthrie House Co-Operative Limited is in accordance with the Australian 
Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and the Co-Operatives Act 1992 (NSW), including: 

1. giving a true and fair view of the Co-Operative’s financial position as at 30 June 2020 and of its performance 
for the financial year ended on that date; and 

2. complying with Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Regime (including the Australian 
Accounting Interpretations), the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits  Commission  Regulation 2013 and 
the Co-Operatives Act 1992 (NSW).

Directors Responsibility 

The Co-Operative’s directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in 
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Regime (including the Australian 
Accounting Interpretations), the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and the Co-
Operatives Act 1992 (NSW).  This responsibility includes establishing and maintaining internal controls relevant to 
the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are 
reasonable in the circumstances 

In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the ability Guthrie House Co-Operative 
Limited, to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intend to liquidate the Entity or to cease operations, 
or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT TO THE MEMBERS (Cont.) 

Auditor’s Responsibility (cont.) 

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement and 
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the internal controls of Guthrie House Co-Operative Limited.  

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by the management committee.  

 Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the ability for Guthrie House Co-Operative Limited to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Entity to cease to continue as a going concern.  

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the disclosures, 
and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation.  

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

`

Benbow & Pike    Gerard J Abrams
Chartered Accountants   Partner 
Suite 401, 54 Miller Street      
NORTH SYDNEY NSW 2060   Dated 31 August 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT TO THE MEMBERS (Cont.) 

Auditor’s Responsibility (cont.) 

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement and 
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the internal controls of Guthrie House Co-Operative Limited.  

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by the management committee.  

 Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the ability for Guthrie House Co-Operative Limited to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Entity to cease to continue as a going concern.  

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the disclosures, 
and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation.  

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

`

Benbow & Pike    Gerard J Abrams
Chartered Accountants   Partner 
Suite 401, 54 Miller Street      
NORTH SYDNEY NSW 2060   Dated 31 August 2020
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AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION UNDER SECTION 60-40 OF 
AUSTRALIAN CHARITIES AND NOT-FOR-PROFITS COMMISSION ACT 2012

TO THE DIRECTORS

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the financial year ended 30 June 2020 there have 
been: 

1. no contraventions of the auditor’s independence requirements as set out in the Australian Charities and 
Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 in relation to the audit; and 

2. no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit. 

Benbow & Pike Gerard J Abrams 
Chartered Accountants Partner
Suite 401, 54 Miller Street  
North Sydney NSW 2060 Dated: 31 August 2020 
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COMPILATION REPORT TO GUTHRIE HOUSE CO-OPERATIVE LIMITED 

Scope

On the basis of information provided by the directors of Guthrie House Co-Operative Limited, we have compiled in 
accordance with APES 315 'Compilation of Financial Information' the special purpose financial report of Guthrie 
House Co-Operative Limited for the year ended 30 June 2020 as set out on the following pages. 

The specific purpose for which the special purpose financial report has been prepared is to provide confidential 
information to the directors and members.   

The directors are solely responsible for the information contained in the special purpose financial report and have 
determined that the accounting policies used are consistent and are appropriate to satisfy the requirements of the 
directors and for the purpose that the financial report was prepared. 

Our procedures use accounting expertise to collect, classify and summarise the financial information, which the 
directors provided, in compiling the financial report.  Our procedures do not include verification or validation 
procedures. No audit or review has been performed and accordingly no assurance is expressed. 

To the extent permitted by law, we do not accept liability for any loss or damage which any person, other than the 
Co-Operative, may suffer arising from any negligence on our part.  No person should rely on the special purpose 
financial report without having an audit or review conducted. 

The special purpose financial report was prepared for the benefit of the Co-Operative and its members and the 
purpose identified above.  We do not accept responsibility to any other person for the contents of the special 
purpose financial report. 

Benbow & Pike Gerard J Abrams 
Chartered Accountants Partner
Suite 401, 54 Miller Street  
North Sydney NSW 2060 Dated: 31 August 2020 
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COMPILATION REPORT TO GUTHRIE HOUSE CO-OPERATIVE LIMITED 

Scope

On the basis of information provided by the directors of Guthrie House Co-Operative Limited, we have compiled in 
accordance with APES 315 'Compilation of Financial Information' the special purpose financial report of Guthrie 
House Co-Operative Limited for the year ended 30 June 2020 as set out on the following pages. 

The specific purpose for which the special purpose financial report has been prepared is to provide confidential 
information to the directors and members.   

The directors are solely responsible for the information contained in the special purpose financial report and have 
determined that the accounting policies used are consistent and are appropriate to satisfy the requirements of the 
directors and for the purpose that the financial report was prepared. 

Our procedures use accounting expertise to collect, classify and summarise the financial information, which the 
directors provided, in compiling the financial report.  Our procedures do not include verification or validation 
procedures. No audit or review has been performed and accordingly no assurance is expressed. 

To the extent permitted by law, we do not accept liability for any loss or damage which any person, other than the 
Co-Operative, may suffer arising from any negligence on our part.  No person should rely on the special purpose 
financial report without having an audit or review conducted. 

The special purpose financial report was prepared for the benefit of the Co-Operative and its members and the 
purpose identified above.  We do not accept responsibility to any other person for the contents of the special 
purpose financial report. 

Benbow & Pike Gerard J Abrams 
Chartered Accountants Partner
Suite 401, 54 Miller Street  
North Sydney NSW 2060 Dated: 31 August 2020 
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INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 

  2020  2019 
   $  $ 
Income 

Department of Corrective Services            369,471           341,596 
NSW Health Department            279,501           270,100 
Department of Community Services           121,100          117,864 
NSW Health Department Drug Court             24,345             47,774 
Department of Health and Ageing           283,895           280,820 
Commonwealth Government Covid 19 
support grant         50,000                   -  
Interest and dividend income               5,870               5,540 
Rental income          29,725            34,088 
Miscellaneous               814              4,288 

Total income        1,164,721        1,102,071 
      
Expenses      

Accounting and Agency Fees    49,605    48,160 
Audit fees    7,280    7,020 
Bank Fees    492    582 
Computer expenses    5,034    3,171 
Consultancy fees    88,835    85,006 
Depreciation    21,917    15,930 
Employee Leave Entitlements 10,013 24,835 
Equipment Hire       490    6,725 
Food & household costs 43,182 35,947 
Gas    619    782 
Insurance    15,158    14,232 
Interest on leases   1,350   -    
Light and power    9,543   15,365 
Materials and stores     53    846 
Motor vehicle expenses    6,758   5,678 
Printing and stationery 6,040 4,352 
Program expenses    28,244    24,099 
Rates  4,675 4,656 
Repairs and maintenance     22,477    14,310 
Salaries     717,973    676,982 
Salaries on-cost    24,581    14,212 
Staff training and welfare    2,737    5,331 
Subscriptions    3,425    1,979 
Sundry expenses                    1,270                936 
Superannuation contributions             66,977             63,628 
Telephone             8,541             12,607 
Travel expenses            1,032              1,950 

Total expenses 1,1483,301  1,089,321
      
Surplus/(loss) for the year   16,420  12,750 
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CO-OPERATIVE INFORMATION 

Directors    Lesley-Anne Davies 
    Christine Duggan 
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Registered office and    Guthrie House 
Principal place of business   10-14 Sebastopol Street 
    ENMORE NSW 2042 

Bankers    Commonwealth Bank 
    164 Enmore Road 

Enmore NSW 2042 

Auditors    Benbow & Pike 
    Chartered Accountants 
    Suite 401  
    54 Miller Street, 
    North Sydney NSW 2060 
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